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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF SOUTH DAKOTA

NORTHERN DIVISION
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HERMAN SCHUMACHER, CIV 02-1027
MICHAEL P. CALLICRATE, and
ROGER D. KOCH,
Plaintiffs,
OPINION AND ORDER ON

-vs- MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT
TYSON FRESH MEATS, INC,,
CARGILL MEAT SOLUTIONS
CORPORATION, d/b/a/ EXCEL
CORPORATION, SWIFT BEEF
COMPANY, and NATIONAL BEEF
PACKING COMPANY,LL.C,

Defendants.
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INTRODUCTION

This class action lawsuit was initiated by cattle producers against the four major packers
seeking damages for alleged violations of the Packers and Stockyards Act (“PSA”), 7 U.S.C.
§§ 181-229 and for unjust enrichment in violation of state law. Plaintiffs’ claims arise out of the
United States Department of Agriculture’s error in publishing boxed beef prices pursuant to the
Livestock Mandatory Reporting Act of 1999 (“LMRA™), 7 U.S.C. §§ 1635-1636h, between April
2,2001, and May 14,2001.! Plaintiff cattle producers claim that the defendants knowingly used
the inaccurate prices published by USDA to negotiate the purchase of slaughter cattle from
plaintiffs at prices substantially lower than would have been economically justified had plaintiffs
known the accurate higher prices that defendants were receiving for their boxed beef.

Defendants have filed a motion for summary judgment on all claims.

'For a more thorough background, see Schumacher v. Tyson Fresh Meats, Inc,, 2004
DSD 5, 221 F.R.D. 605 (D.S.D. 2004).
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I previously entered an opinion and order (Doc. 515) which summarily denied the motion
for summary judgment without any explanation as to why the motion was denied. That is not a
good practice for a judge. | had the draft of the present opinion and order, but, for some reason,
neglected to complete it, sign it, and file it. I now do so, nunc pro tunc, to January 5, 2006.

DECISION

The summary judgment standard is well known and has been set forth by this Court in
numerous opinions. See Hanson v. North Star Mutual Insurance Co., 1999 D.S.D. 34 4 8, 71
F.Supp.2d 1007, 1009-1010 (D.S.D. 1999), Gardner v. Tripp County, 1998 D.S.D. 38 v 8, 66
F.Supp.2d 1094, 1098 (D.S.D. 1998), Patterson Farm, Inc. v. City of Britton, 1998 D.S.D. 34 17,
22 F.Supp.2d 1085, 1088-89 (D.S.D. 1998), and Smith v. Horton Industries, 1998 D.S.D. 26 92,
17 F.Supp.2d 1094, 1095 (D.S.D. 1998). Summary Judgment is proper where there is no

genuine issue as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of

law. Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c); Donaho v. FMC Corp., 74 F.3d 894, 898 (8th Cir. 1996).

Defendants are entitled to summary judgment if plaintiffs fail “to establish the existence
of an element essential to” the plaintiffs’ case on which the plaintiff “will bear the burden of
proof at trial. In such a situation, there can be ‘no genuine issue as to any material fact,” since a
complete failure of proof concerning an essential element of the [plaintiffs’] case necessarily

renders all other facts immaterial.” Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 322-23, 106 S. Ct.

2548,2552,91 L. Ed. 2d 265 (1986). “A material fact dispute is genuine if the evidence is
sufficient to allow a reasonable jury to return a verdict for the non-moving party.” Landon v,

Northwest Airlines, Inc., 72 F.3d 620, 634 (8th Cir. 1995). In considering the motion for

summary judgment, this Court must view the facts in the light most favorable to plaintiffs and
give plaintiffs the benefit of all reasonable inferences that can be drawn from the facts. Donaho,

74 F.3d at 897-98.
Packers and Stockyards Act Claim.

Plaintiffs claim that the defendants’ use of the inaccurately reported boxed beef prices to
negotiate the purchase of cattle constituted an unfair trade practice in violation of the PSA.
Defendants contend that, in order to prevail on their PSA claim, plaintiffs must show that the

packers’ alleged conduct in violation of the PSA adversely affected competition. Defendants
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